
 
CITY OF CHELSEA ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, June 19, 2024, at 5:00 PM 
Chelsea City Council Chambers 

311 S. Main Street 
Remote option available for members of the public. Board members must attend in person. 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of the Agenda 

4. Approval of the Minutes  

a. Approval of the regular meeting minutes for February 21, 2024. 

5. Public Comment (non-agenda items) 

6. Public Hearings 

a. Variance 24-2: 123 Buchanan Street (parcel ID # 06-06-12-140-026)  
Request from Jordan Franklin for a variance to allow for a reduction in the 
front yard setback for the construction of a generator and associated concrete 
pad in the GI – General Industrial Zoning District. 

7. Adjournment 
 
Zoom Information 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89972487928?pwd=r9E_FDROrHfuOqv2_Ua1J9Z4S3En_w.jfIxnuoicgA
tiZuj 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Webinar ID: 899 7248 7928 
Passcode: 082436 
  
 

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89972487928?pwd=r9E_FDROrHfuOqv2_Ua1J9Z4S3En_w.jfIxnuoicgAtiZuj
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89972487928?pwd=r9E_FDROrHfuOqv2_Ua1J9Z4S3En_w.jfIxnuoicgAtiZuj


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 4a 
February 21, 2024 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2/21/2024 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Tom Osbourne, Jasen King, Jamie Lane, Alexander Rasegan, Laura Baker 
Call to order: 5:05 PM 
 
Motion by King to approve the agenda, 2nd Lane 
Passes, all ayes 
 
Motion by King to accept October 18, 2023 Meeting Minutes, 2nd Lane 
Passes, all ayes 
 
Public comment – none 
 
New business 
Variance 24-1: 775 South Main Street (APN 06-06-12-475-054) Request from Steve VanBrussel for a 
variance to allow for an increased maximum height for rooftop mechanical equipment and a variance for 
complete screening requirements in the MI – Medical Institutional District. 
Motion by Lane to approve variance based on retrofitting an older building and existing trees providing 
sufficient screening, 2nd King 
Passes, all ayes 
 
Motion by King to adopt the bylaws and rules of procedure, 2nd Lane 
Passes, all ayes 
 
Motion by Lane  to approve the 2024 meeting calendar, 2nd King 
Passes, all ayes 
 
Motion to adjourn by King, 2nd Lane 
Passes, all ayes 
Adjourn at 5:20pm 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 6a 
Variance 24-2: 123 Buchanan Street  

(parcel ID # 06-06-12-140-026)  

Request from Jordan Franklin for a variance to allow for 
a reduction in the front yard setback for the 

construction of a generator and associated concrete pad 
in the GI – General Industrial Zoning District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Date: June 12, 2024 

VARIANCE ANALYSIS  
FOR  

City of Chelsea 
ARIANCE ANALYSIS 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 
APPLICANT:   Jordan Franklin 
   201 W North Street 
   Chelsea, MI 48118 
 
LOCATION: 123 Buchanan Street 
 # 06-06-12-140-026 
  
CURRENT ZONING:  GI – General Industrial 
 
PETITION: Variance to reduce the front yard setback from 35 feet to 16.17 

feet along Buchanan Street (northern frontage) 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST 
 
The subject parcel is currently developed with an industrial building, garage, and associated parking 
and loading spaces, part of the broader Chelsea Milling Company site. The subject parcel underwent 
site plan review and approval for the industrial building and associated improvements, built in 2022. 
The building itself was constructed thirty-five (35’) feet from the front property line along Buchanan 
Street, and in compliance with the current setback regulations. The applicant is now proposing a 
gated concrete pad with a generator, entirely within the front yard setback area. The site plan that 
the applicant provided with their variance application is an amended version of the approved site 
plan application; as such, the building, loading areas, and parking areas are shown as “proposed” 
when they are actually already developed. The only area proposed as part of the project is the 
generator pad and surrounding gate, shown on Sheet 5A of the provided site plan.  

On June 11, 2024, the applicant provided a letter describing the reason for the requested variance. 
The applicant cited the three front yards on the property posing limitations to the buildable area. The 
required front yard setbacks and rear yard setbacks in the GI – General Industrial district are identical 
at 35 feet.  

 



Chelsea Milling Variance Report 
June 12, 2024 

2 
 

EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONDITIONS 
 
The property is located in the GI – General Industrial Zoning District at parcel ID # 06-06-12-140-026. 
The setback regulations for the GI – General Industrial zoning district are indicated in the table below.  
The property fronts North Street, Buchanan Street, and Filmore Street. As such, the yards that front 
all three streets are considered the front yard. The front yard and rear yard setback requirements in 
the GI zoning district are identical at 35 feet. The side yard setback requirement in the GI zoning 
district is 25 feet.  

Figure 1. Aerial view of subject site and vicinity  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source: Nearmap, 2023 

The site has now been developed with the warehouse building and associated parking areas, loading 
areas, and other site improvements after receiving final site plan approval from the City of Chelsea 
on October 26, 2021. The project received a variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals on May 19, 
2021, to allow a reduction in the setback along North Street from 35 feet to 7.4 feet to accommodate 
the building’s location. The building complies with the required 35-foot setback requirements along 
Buchanan Street and Filmore Street. The impervious coverage exceeds the 80% limit, and our 
records show that the site plan was approved with this deviation, without a variance from the Zoning 



Chelsea Milling Variance Report 
June 12, 2024 

3 
 

Board of Appeals. The variance application references the 83.6% impervious coverage calculation 
of the existing conditions and does not include an updated calculation.  

The table below summarizes the dimensional requirements that apply to the site, the existing 
conditions, and the proposed conditions. The distance from the warehouse building to the side 
(east) property line is not provided, but it appears to comply with the regulations for side yard 
setbacks and will not be impacted by the proposed project. The required setbacks for front yards 
and rear yards in the GI district are both 35 feet, and the existing setback that fronts Filmore Street is 
roughly 70 feet. 
 

Dimensional Regulation Requirement Existing  Proposed 
Front yard setback – along North St 35 ft 7.4 ft, with variance 7.4 ft 
Front yard setback – along Buchanan St 35 ft 35 ft 16.17 ft 
Front yard setback – along Filmore St 35 ft ~70 ft ~70 ft 
Side yard setback – east side of property 25 ft >25 ft >25 ft 
Impervious Coverage 80% 83.6% Over 83.6% 

 
VARIANCE CONSIDERATIONS 

According to section 15.10 B of the Zoning Ordinance, a variance shall not be granted by the Zoning 
Board of Appeals unless and until all of the following are met:  

A. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or 
building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures, or buildings in the 
same district. 

CWA Comment: The ZBA should consider if the proposed generator pad location in the front yard 
that fronts Buchanan Street is the only reasonable location for generator installation. The site fronts 
three public rights-of-way, and therefore has three front yards, which is not typical. However, the 
impervious coverage at the site exceeds the district limit, and the applicant previously sought a 
reduction in the setback requirement along North Street.   

B. That literal interpretation of the provisions of this ordinance would deprive the applicant of 
rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same district under the terms of this 
ordinance. 

CWA Comment: Mechanical equipment in the GI zoning district is generally installed on rooftops 
except where not possible, such as retrofitting older buildings with newer mechanical equipment.  

C. That special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant. 

CWA Comment: The site was developed by the applicant with a site plan approved in 2021. The 
minimal yard space that resulted in the need for this variance request was created by the applicant. 



Chelsea Milling Variance Report 
June 12, 2024 

4 
 

The subject parcel was created by combining multiple parcels all owned by Chelsea Milling 
Company as part of the site plan approved in 2021.  

D. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this Ordinance to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district. 

CWA Comment: The ability to install a generator is not a special privilege that is denied by the Zoning 
Ordinance to other lands, structures, or buildings in the GI – General Industrial Zoning District.  

E. That no nonconforming use of neighboring lands, structures, or buildings in the same district, 
and no permitted use of lands, structures, or buildings in other districts shall be considered 
grounds for the issuance of a variance. 

CWA Comment: The ZBA should review this proposal alone and not compare it to other sites.  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals should review the requested variance to determine that they can find 
in favor of the applicant all of the above considerations.  In its review, the Zoning Board of Appeals 
shall determine that: 

a. The requirements of the Ordinance for a variance have been met by the applicant.  

b. The reasons set forth in the application justify the granting of the variance.  

c. The variance is the minimum variance that will make possible a reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure.  

d. Granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this 

Ordinance, and will not be injurious to the neighborhood, or otherwise detrimental to the 

public welfare. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
  



mmarin
Highlight

























 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

FOR PROPOSED VARIANCE 
 
 

An application has been filed by Jordan Franklin, Chelsea Milling Company for a Variance to 
allow for a front yard setback reduction in the G-I, General Industrial Zoning District, for the 
installation of a generator. 
 

Tax Code: 06-06-12-140-026 
 (123 Buchanan Street, Chelsea, MI 48118) 

 
The application for a Variance will be considered by the Chelsea Zoning Board of Appeals on 
Wednesday, June 19, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. Meeting to be held in the City Municipal Building 
(Council Chambers) located at 311 S. Main Street, Chelsea, MI. A Zoom link will be provided 
for members of the public who would like to attend remotely. Information will be posted on the 
City of Chelsea’s website (www.city-chelsea.org). 
 
Signed, written comments concerning the application will be accepted prior to the Zoning Board 
of Appeals meeting and will be included in the meeting packet. Comments should be addressed to 
the Chelsea Zoning Board of Appeals, 305 S Main St, Suite 100, Chelsea, MI  48118. Comments 
may also be emailed to Planning@city-chelsea.org. 
 
Persons requiring reasonable accommodations to disabilities in order that the hearing be accessible 
to them are requested to notify the Chelsea Zoning Board of Appeals Chairman no later than five 
(5) business days prior to the date of the hearing of such disability. 
 

 
CITY OF CHELSEA ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Community Development Department 



Occupant 
212 Buchanan Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

 
Occupant 

533 N Main Street, Unit 2 
Chelsea, MI. 

48118 

 
Occupant 

533 N Main Street, Unit 12 
Chelsea, MI. 

48118 

Occupant 
140 Buchanan Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 3 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 13 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
116 Buchanan Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 4 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 14 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
407 N Main Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 5 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 15 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
350 N Main Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 6 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 16 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
314 N Main Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 7 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 17 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
310 N Main Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 8 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

 

Occupant 
530 N Main Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 9 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

 

Occupant 
500 N Main Street 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 10 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 1 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

Occupant 
533 N Main Street, Unit 11 

Chelsea, MI. 
48118 

 

 


	Variance Review Chelsea Milling 6.12.24.pdf
	6-19-24 ZBA Meeting Packet.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	ZBA 6-19-24 meeting agenda.pdf
	CITY OF CHELSEA ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	AGENDA

	20240430110403.pdf
	doc01426320240611155937.pdf
	Jiffy Site Plan - Variance App 4-22-24.pdf
	Image_20240430_0001.pdf
	Image_20240430_0002.pdf
	Image_20240430_0003.pdf
	Image_20240430_0005.pdf
	Image_20240430_0006.pdf
	Image_20240430_0007.pdf
	Image_20240430_0008.pdf


	PHN ZBA June 19 - 123 Buchanan Variance.pdf
	Jiffy 123 Bunchanan l 300 ft radius addresses.pdf




